
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
GALLOWS KEBABS 

 
AGENDA 

 

10.30 am 
Tuesday 

21 August 2018 
Council Chamber - 

Town Hall 

 
Members 3: Quorum 2 
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Philippa Crowder (Chairman) 
Christine Smith 
Reg Whitney 
 

 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: Victoria Freeman 
victoria.freeman@onesource.co.uk 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



Licensing Sub-Committee, 21 August 2018 

 
 

 

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 
 

 



Licensing Sub-Committee, 21 August 2018 

 
 

 



Licensing Sub-Committee, 21 August 2018 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 

MEMBERS  

 
 (if any) - receive 

 

2 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 
 Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point of the meeting. 
 
Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the 
consideration of the matter. 
 

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. 
 

4 REPORT OF THE CLERK (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
 Procedure for the hearing – Licensing Act 2003 

 

5 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - GALLOWS KEBABS - 14 STRAIGHT 
ROAD, ROMFORD, RM3 8AA (Pages 7 - 34) 

 
 This application for a premises licence is made by Mrs Perihan Unal under section 17 

of the Licensing Act 2003  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Andrew Beesley 
Head of Democratic Services 

 
 
 



 

 
LICENSING  
SUB-COMMITTEE 
21 August 2018 

REPORT 
 

 
Subject Heading: 
 
 

Procedure for the Hearing: Licensing 
Act 2003 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

Victoria Freeman (01708) 433862 
e-mail: 
victoria.freeman@onesource.co.uk 
 

 
Members are advised that, when considering application for a premises licence, 
the following options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part 
3, section 35, paragraphs 3 and 4: 
 

"Where relevant representations are made, the authority must 
 
(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the  applicant and 

each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is 
unnecessary, and 

 
(b) having regard to the representations, take such steps as it considers 

necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   
 
The steps are: 
a) modify the conditions of the licence 
b) reject the whole or part of the application 
 
and for this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them 
is altered or omitted or any new condition is added." 

 
The Sub-Committee will also wish to note that, if none of these steps is required, 
the application must be granted. 
 
Assuming that the Sub-Committee is satisfied that a hearing is required, then the 
following procedural steps are recommended. The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 will govern the arrangements for the hearing of the application 
now under consideration. This report accords with the requirements of that Act and 
the Regulations, and in particular Regulations 21-25 (procedure at the hearing). 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
 
 
 
1. Membership of the Sub-Committee: 
 
1.1 The Sub-Committee comprises three members of the Licensing Committee, 

with a quorum of two members. Unless there are objections, in the 
absence of three members, the hearing shall proceed with the quorum 
of two. 

 
1.1.1 A member of the Licensing Committee will be excluded from hearing 

an application where he or she has considered an application in 
respect of the premises in the previous 12 months as a Member of 
the Regulatory Services Committee; or 

1.1.2 is a Ward Councillor for the Ward in which the premises, subject to 
the application, are located; or 

1.1.3 is a Ward Councillor for a Ward which is likely to be affected by the 
application or;  

1.1.4 has a personal interest in the application. 
 
2. Roles of other participants: 
 
2.1 The Legal Advisor is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Legal Advisor 

is to provide legal advice relating to the application and submissions. 
 

2.2 The Clerk is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Clerk is to record the 
hearing and the decisions of the Sub-Committee, and ensure efficient 
administration 

 
3. Location and facilities: 
 
3.1 All hearings will be heard at the Havering Town Hall unless otherwise 

directed.  
 
3.2 Interpreters will be provided by the Council on request, provided notice is 

given at least five working days before the hearing. 
 
4. Notification of attendance: 
 
4.1 The Chairman will enquire of the parties who is in attendance and the 

parties will indicate their names (and, where relevant, whom they represent). 
A register will be circulated before the commencement of the hearing on 
which the applicant, his/her advisers and companions and all interested 
parties (and/or their representatives) will be asked to record their 
attendance. 

 
5. Procedural matters: 
 
5.1 Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the Chairman of the Sub-

Committee will orally inform the parties whether their applications to have 
certain people attend the hearing (e.g. witnesses) have been granted or 

Page 2



 
 
 

refused. Note this relates to people other than those attending on behalf of a 
party in the capacity as a representative of the party. 

 
5.2 Prior to the commencement of the hearing the Chairman of the Sub-

Committee will outline the procedure to be followed at the hearing. This will 
normally be as follows: 
 
Introduction of the application: 
 
The Licensing officer will outline: 

 details of the application and relevant representations received from the 
parties; 

 relevant legislation ; 

 relevant Licensing Policy; and 

 the time limit in which the Council must reach a determination. 
 
Documentary evidence: 
 

 Documentary or other information in support of applications, 
representations or notices should be provided to the Clerk of the Sub-
Committee at least 7 clear working days before the hearing. If this 
information is produced at the hearing it will only be taken into account 
by the Sub-Committee if the Sub-Committee and all the parties consent 
to its submission.  Permission to have this information included in the 
hearing should be requested at the beginning of the hearing before any 
oral submissions have been made. 

 

 Statements made by people in support of a party’s representation who 
are not present at the hearing, must be signed by the maker, dated and 
witnessed by another person. The statement must also contain the 
witness’s full name and occupation. 

Representations: 
 

 The chairman will invite each of the parties at the hearing or their 
representative sequentially to address the Sub-Committee and call any 
person/s to whom permission has been granted to appear. Each party 
will be allowed a maximum period of 10 minutes in which to address the 
Sub-Committee and call persons on his/her behalf. 

 

 This 10 minute period is where each party has the opportunity to orally 
address the Sub-Committee and clarify any points in which the Sub-
Committee has sought clarification prior to the hearing. This 10 minute 
period should be uninterrupted unless a member of the Sub-Committee 
or Legal Advisor considers that the speaker is making submissions that 
are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious. 

 

 Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of any party, at any 
time during the proceedings. Time taken in dealing with a Member’s 

Page 3



 
 
 

question will not be taken into account in determining the length of time 
available to the party in question to make their representation. 

 
The sequence in which each of the parties will be invited to address the 
Sub-Committee will normally be in the order of: 
 

 the Chief Officer of Police; 

 the Fire Authority; 

 the Health and Safety at Work Enforcing Authority; 

 the Local Planning Authority; 

 the Local environmental Health Authority; 

 the Local Weights and Measures Authority; 

 the Authority Responsible for the Protection of Children from Harm; 

 a navigation or other authority responsible for waterways; and 

 any other party that has submitted representations in respect of the 
application, certificate, notice or other matter appearing before the 
Sub-Committee; 

 the party that has submitted the application, certificate, notice or 
other matter appearing before the Sub-Committee. 

 
At the discretion of the Sub-Committee the above order may be varied. 

 
Cross-Examination: 

 
Where witnesses have been permitted by the Sub-Committee to speak at 
the hearing on behalf of a party, permission must be sought from the Sub-
Committee before another party can ask the witness questions. This 
process of questioning is normally referred to as cross-examination.  The 
Sub-Committee will allow cross-examination only where it is necessary to 
assist it in considering the representations or application.  

 
Relevance: 
 
Information submitted at the hearing must be relevant to the applications, 
representations, or notice and the promotion of the licensing objectives. The 
Chairman of the Sub-Committee is entitled to exclude any information it 
considers to be irrelevant whether presented in written or oral form. The 
licensing objectives are: 

The prevention of crime and disorder; 

Public safety; 

The prevention of public nuisance; and  

The protection of children from harm. 
 
6. Failure of parties to attend the hearing: 
 
6.1 If a party, who has not given prior notice of his/her intention not to attend the 

hearing, is absent from the hearing the Sub-Committee may either adjourn 

Page 4



 
 
 

the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence. Where the hearing is 
held in the absence of a party, the Sub-Committee will still consider the 
application, representation or notice submitted by that party. 

7. Adjournments and extension of time: 
 
7.1 The Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or extend a 

notice period except where it must make a determination within certain time 
limits in the following specific applications: 

 

 Review of premises licences following closure orders where the Sub-
committee must make a determination within 28 days of receiving notice 
of the closure order. 

 
8. Sub-Committee’s determination of the hearing: 
 
8.1 At the conclusion of the hearing the Sub-Committee will deliberate in private 

accompanied by the Clerk and the Legal Advisor who will be available to 
assist the Sub-Committee with any legal problems but will not participate in 
any decision making of the Sub-Committee. 

 
8.2 The Sub-Committee will normally make its determination and announce its 

decision at the end of the hearing. 
 
8.3 Where all parties have notified the Sub-Committee that a hearing is not 

required the Sub-Committee must make its determination within 10 working 
days of being given notice that the hearing is not required. 

 
9.  Power to exclude people from hearing: 
 
9.1 The public are entitled to attend the hearing as spectators. However, the 

Sub-Committee may exclude any person from the hearing including any 
person assisting or representing a party where: 

 it  considers that the public interest would be best served by excluding 
the public or the individual person from the hearing; or 

 that person is behaving in a disruptive manner. This may include a party 
who is seeking to be heard at the hearing. In the case where a party is to 
be excluded, the party may submit to the Sub-Committee in writing any 
information which they would have been entitled to give orally had they 
not been required to leave the hearing. 

 
110.  Recording of proceedings: 
 
10.1 A written record of the hearing will be produced and kept for 6 years from 

the date of the determination of the hearing. 
 
11.  Power to vary procedure: 
 
11..1 The Sub-committee may depart from following any of the procedures set out 

in this document if it considers the departure to be necessary in order to 
consider an application, notice or representation. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Licensing Officer’s Report 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

  

LICENSING  
SUB-COMMITTEE
21 August 2018 

REPORT
 

 
Subject heading: 
 
 

Gallows Kebabs GY54 WCP 
Straight Road Romford RM3 8AA 
Premises licence application 

Report author and contact details: 
  
 

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer 
Town Hall, Main Road, Romford 
licensing@havering.gov.uk 
01708 432777 

 

This application for a premises licence is made by Mrs Perihan Unal under 
section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.  The application was received by Havering’s 
Licensing Authority on 27th June 2018. 
 

Geographical description of the area and description of the building 
 

This premises comprises a mobile van which supplies hot food.  It is located in a dead-
end section of road adjacent to the A12.  The van is parked next to a KFC outlet; 
however, this section of Straight Road is largely residential although the local area may 
reasonably be considered to be one of mixed use. 
 

 

Page 8



O:\Flare\masters\Licensing Cttee Rpt.doc  

 
 
Details of the application 
 

The application seeks to permit the following licensable activity: 
 

Late night refreshment 
Day Start Finish 
Monday to Sunday 23:00 02:00 

 

Comments and observations on the application 
 

The applicant acted in accordance with regulations 25 and 26 of The Licensing Act 
2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 relating to 
the advertising of the application.  The required public notice was installed in the 6th July 
2018 edition of the Romford Recorder. 
 

Summary 
 

There were no representations against this application from residents or businesses in 
the area. 
 

There was one representation against this application from a responsible authority, 
namely Havering’s Licensing Authority. 
 

 

 

 

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Copy of Application 

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Representation from  
Responsible Authority 

Page 29



  
 

 

 

Licensing Act 2003 Responsible Authority representation  

This representation is made by a responsible Authority for the London Borough of Havering 
concerning a licence application for the premises as detailed below. 

Premises Name and address: Gallows Kebab, On slip Road, Colchester Road/Straight 
Road, RM3 0AA 

 

Your Name:_ Paul Campbell 

Organisation name/name of body you represent:  Licensing Authority as a 
Responsible Authority  

Your Address:- Licensing Section, Town Hall, Main Road, Romford, RM1 3BD 

 

Email licensing@havering.gov.uk  

Contact telephone number 01708 432777 

 

Policy  Considerations 
4.0 Expectations of applicants  
 
4.1 The licensing objectives  

 The prevention of crime and disorder  

 Public safety  

 The prevention of public nuisance  

 The protection of children from harm  

are at the heart of the licensing regime. Applicants must demonstrate in their operating 

schedules as part of an application how they will address each objective. The Licensing 

Authority will make decisions about applications, variations and reviews based on the 

promotion of the same objectives. Those making representations to the Licensing sub-

committee must base them on the Licensing objectives. 

 

4.2 It is for these reasons that Havering is keen to see complete, detailed and meaningful 

operating schedules that will enable all parties to understand what is being sought by an 

application, and if granted how the premises will operate. In completing the operating 

schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to this Statement of Licensing Policy 

which sets out the expectations of the Authority as to the steps that are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 30

mailto:licensing@havering.gov.uk


  

 
4.3 The completion of a full and detailed operating schedule will give those reading the 
application greater confidence that the applicant seeks to make a positive contribution and 
is demonstrating a commitment to both those living in the vicinity and the licensing 
objectives. Applicants are expected to:  

 Demonstrate knowledge of the local area when describing the steps they propose 

to take to promote the licensing objectives;  

 Undertake enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to inform the 

content of the application;  

 Obtain sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate, when setting out the 

steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, that they 

understand;  

o The layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and 

disorder hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas 

where children congregate.  

o Any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable 

activities;  

o Any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary 

schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other 

schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.  

 
Applicants are also expected to include positive proposals in their application as to how 
they will manage any potential risks. 
 
4.7 An operating schedule forms the basis for conditions that will be placed on the licence. 
It should contain details relating to the promotion of the licensing objectives that are 
capable of being translated into enforceable conditions as, if there are no representations 
against the grant of the licence these will form the basis of the conditions.  
 

4.8 The failure by an applicant to clearly and fully demonstrate in the operating schedule 

that they have properly considered the promotion of the four licensing objectives is a 

legitimate concern should the application come before the Licensing sub-committee. 

 
6.0 Licensing Hours  
 
Licensing Policy 7  
When dealing with new and variation applications the Licensing Authority will give more 
favourable consideration to applications with the following closing times:  
Public Houses and Bars  23:00 hours-Sunday to Thursday  

Midnight –Friday and Saturday  
 
Nightclubs    01:00 hours Sunday to Thursday  

02:00 hours Friday and Saturday  
 
Restaurants and Cafes  23:00 hours Sunday to Thursday  

Midnight- Friday and Saturday  
 

Off licences    23:00 Monday to Sundays 

 
 

Page 31



  

 
Hot food and drink supplied by takeaways, fast food premises  

 

Midnight- Sunday to Thursdays  
01:00 Friday and Saturday  

 
Hotel residents only  24 hours sale of alcohol for on sales only.  
 
Consideration will also be given to the type of area that the premises is located in 
with regulated activities normally being permitted until  

 

23.30 in residential areas and  
00.30 in mixed use areas.  

 

These hours are not pre-determined and each application will be considered on its merits. 

 

6.3 Applicants who wish to provide licensable activities outside the hours specified above 

should ensure that the operating schedule specifies detailed measures to militate against 

crime, disorder and public nuisance taking into account: 

 

 The location of the premises and the character of the area in which they are 

situated  

 The proposed hours during which licensable activities will take place  

 The adequacy of the applicant’s proposals to prevent crime and disorder and 

prevent public nuisance  

 Whether customers have access to public transport when arriving at or leaving the 

premises  

 The proximity of the premises to other licensed premises in the vicinity and the 

hours of operation of those other premises policies and proposals for the orderly 

dispersal of customers.  

 

Licensing Policy 14  
The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting the amenity of residents and 

businesses in the vicinity of licenced premises, particularly when late hours have been 

sought. Where relevant representations are received, the Licensing Authority will impose 

appropriate restrictions or controls on the licence to support the prevention of undue noise 

disturbance from licensed premises. 

 

Representation 
 
I am making this representation against the application on behalf of the Licensing Authority 
acting as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
If granted this premises will be licensed for hot food and drink between 23:00 and 02:00 
every day of the week. 
 
The nearest food outlet to this venue is KFC which is about 25 metres away which has a 
finish time of 23:00 each day. 
 
 

Page 32



  

 
People arriving at these premises during these later hours would have been to other 
venues beforehand and some would have consumed alcohol, they mainly would arrive by 
car or other vehicle. 
 
It is the nature of people after drinking alcohol to be louder when speaking and less careful 
about any noise they make, this premises just be being open will cause a public nuisance. 
 
With the nearest house being just 40 metres away from the kebab van itself, (which is at 
the end of the slip road), persons arriving will park their vehicles nearer to the houses exit 
their cars to get their food, wait for it to be prepared, then back to their cars to eat or to 
drive off.  All of this will cause a public nuisance. 
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance is one of the four Licensing Objectives which is at the 
heart of the licensing regime.  The applicant in the operating schedule must demonstrate 
what they will do to promote the four licensing objectives, in this particular case to prevent 
public nuisance. 
 
The applicant states that “when it is necessary we will point out to offending customers 
local residents rights such as not making a nuisance of themselves e.g. violence, 
excessive noise, litter etc.”  
This in itself states that they will tell people to stop shouting or fighting after they have 
caused a nuisance, this may prevent future nuisance but has not prevented nuisance 
taking place. 
 
The operating schedule should be, complete, detailed and meaningful, in this application it 
is not, it lays out a number of points some of these have to be complied with under other 
legislation and do not show how the licensing objectives will be promoted. 
 
To prevent crime and disorder – before it escalates they will call the emergency services. 
Public safety – They have hygiene certificates, smoking is prohibited in the van. – this is all 
covered under other legislation 
 
Protection of Children from harm – The applicant states that he will not serve children 
under the age of 14 and 16 – this is an application for Late Night Refreshment which starts 
at 23:00hrs – there is no mention of what will be done if a unaccompanied child attends 
the venue. 
 
Gaming Machines are not permitted at this type of premises. 
 

Licensing Policy 7 outlines times that may be given more favourable consideration when 

an application is made, these times for a Late Night Refreshment establishment are  

 Midnight- Sunday to Thursdays  

 01:00 Friday and Saturday  
 
Also that  
Consideration will also be given to the type of area that the premises is located in with 
regulated activities normally being permitted until  

 23.30 in residential areas and  

 00.30 in mixed use areas.  
 

 

Page 33



  

 

As I previously stated this venue is 40 metres from the nearest house and 25 metres from 

another food outlet which finishes trading at 23:00 so could be classed as either residential 

or a mixed use area. 

 

The application asks for a finish time of 02:00 every day and does not address why this 

licence should be permitted to go outside of the times outlined in Havering’s Licensing 

Policy 

 
Section 4.8 of Havering’s Licensing Policy states 

The failure by an applicant to clearly and fully demonstrate in the operating schedule that 

they have properly considered the promotion of the four licensing objectives is a legitimate 

concern should the application come before the Licensing sub-committee. 

 
It is my submission that this application and operating schedule is not adequate for a late 
night refreshment venue at this location. 
 
The idea of a business is to attract customers, by being open at a late hour it becomes a 
destination venue for people finishing their nights entertainment.  The potential for public 
nuisance easy to see. 
 
The later the hour the less degree of noise causes a nuisance. 
 
I feel that the licence if granted should be in line with the hours outlined in Havering’s 
Licensing Policy 
 

Complaint and Inspection History (if applicable) 

 

Other documents attached 

 

 

Signed                    dated 24/07/2018 

 

Page 34


	Agenda
	4 REPORT OF THE CLERK
	5 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - GALLOWS KEBABS - 14 STRAIGHT ROAD, ROMFORD, RM3 8AA
	Front LO report
	LO Rpt
	Prem plans
	Front Application
	Website version
	Front Responsible Authy1
	LA rep


